
 

DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY  

March 18, 2024 at 5:05 PM  
Regular Meeting  

Police Jury Meeting Room, 101 Franklin Street, Mansfield, LA 71052  

AGENDA 

A.    CALL TO ORDER 

B.    INVOCATION 

C.    PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

D.    PRESENTATION OF ACHIEVEMENTS AND SERVICE AWARDS 

E.    ANNOUNCEMENTS 

F.    CALL FOR ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 

G.    GUEST AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 

1. Veneeth Iyengar - Broadband 

H.    PRESIDENT'S REPORT 

I.     COUNSEL'S REPORT 

J.     ADMINISTRATOR'S REPORT 

2. Michael Norton, Parish Administrator's, written report 

K.     LOBBYIST'S REPORT 

3. Chance McNeely, Delta Resource Group, written report 

L.    TREASURER'S FINANCIAL REPORT 

4. Accept the Financial Statements as of February 29, 2024 and Year to date 
Budget to actual report 

M.    APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

5. February 20, 2024 Regular Meeting, March 4, 2024 Administrative, Budget and 
Finance, Solid Waste, Personnel and Road Committee Meetings 

N.    OLD BUSINESS 

6. Motion to defer the decision on insurance to June 2024 Regular Meeting 

Page 1



Agenda DeSoto Parish Police Jury March 18, 2024 

 

O.    NEW BUSINESS 

P.    RESOLUTIONS 

7. Recommends authorizing the President to sign a Resolution to declare certain 

moveable property surplus and schedule a sale of surplus as per State Law 

8. Recommends authorizing the President to sign a Resolution approving the 

issuance, sale and delivery of a Taxable Excess Revenue Bond of Waterworks 
District No. 1 of the Parish of DeSoto, State of Louisiana, in the amount not to 

exceed $500,000; and providing for other matters relating thereto 

Q.    ORDINANCES 

R.    ADMINISTRATIVE ITEMS 

9. Recommends selling the property located at the Sheriff's  Training Facility,120 
Sprocket Lane, to Sheriff at Market value and all  proceeds be dedicated to the 

Jail Fund. 

10. Recommends approving the updated Rules and Bylaws 

11. Recommends approving the recommendation by the DeSoto Parish Planning 

Commission suggesting implementing a moratorium for a period of one (1) year 
on subdivided land if the lots are one acre or larger and do not have frontage to 

an existing parish or state maintained roadway, unless they meet all the 
DeSoto Parish Subdivision Regulations requirements 

12. Recommends approving the recommendation by the DeSoto Parish Planning 

Commission suggesting implementing a moratorium for a period of six (6) 
months on all future subdivisions, to disallow the selling of any lots by the 

developer utilizing the statement, "clear title is not available on any lot until all 
improvements and installations have been made", as a stated condition in Part 
III Section D-3 in the DeSoto Parish Subdivision Regulations. The developer will 

be allowed to sell lots if one of the three remaining conditions listed in Part III 
Section D-1, D-2 and D-4 are met. 

13. Recommends appointing Ashley Hadwin or Betty Carter to the Planning 

Commission serving a six (6) year term 

S.    BUDGET AND FINANCE ITEMS 

14. Recommends authorizing the President to sign a Cooperative Endeavor 
Agreement with the Town of Logansport and amend the budget in the amount 

of $5,000 for help with the River City Festival 

15. Recommends authorizing the President to sign a Cooperative Endeavor 

Agreement with Fire District #1 and amend the budget in the amount of $2,500 
for help with the 4th of July Fire Works Display 

16. Recommends awarding low bid to JPS Motors for vehicle purchases 

Page 2



Agenda DeSoto Parish Police Jury March 18, 2024 

 

T.   PERSONNEL ITEMS 

17. Recommends approving the Job Description and position for Engineering 

Technician 

U.    ROAD ITEMS 

18. Recommends approving the E-911 naming of Chiasson Pvt Drive off of Depot 

Road and Florida Pvt Dr. off of Cowboy Lane in Keachi 

V.    SOLID WASTE ITEMS 

19. Recommends awarding high bid to WC Robbins, LLC dba DeSoto Iron & Metal 

for scrap metal 

20. Recommends awarding low bid for two (2) roll off trucks at the landfill 

W.  ADJOURN 

Page 3



MEMORANDUM 

TO: DeSoto Parish Police Jury 

FROM: The Delta Resource Group 

RE: March Update 

DATE: March 18, 2024 

____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

This memo has been prepared to provide an update on legislative and other governmental 

matters to the DeSoto Parish Police Jury. 

 

Legislative Session 

 

The Louisiana legislature convened on Monday, March 11, 2024. They must adjourn by June 3, 

2024. There is a growing consensus that the legislature will adjourn early and go into a special 

session to make changes to the state constitution. This means that bills will be moving more 

quickly than usual in order to meet the early adjournment goal.  

 

Bills of interest for DPPJ: 

 

HB 89 - Rep. Larry Bagley - Provides relative to the number of employees in the 

registrar of voters office in certain parishes. 

 

HB 223 - Rep. Tammy Phelps - Authorizes certain local government code enforcement 

officials to take certain actions with respect to inspections. 

 

HB 241 - Rep. Rodney Schamerhorn - (Constitutional Amendment) Requires voter 

approval of compensation increases for certain local officials. 

 

HB 259 - Rep. Beau Beaullieu - Reduces the severance tax rate for oil over a certain 

period of time and specifies the severance tax rate for oil produced from certain wells. 

 

HB 273 - Rep. Rodney Schamerhorn - (Constitutional Amendment) Provides for term 

limits for certain parish and municipal officials. 

 

HB 413 - Rep. Beau Beaullieu - Reduces severance tax rates on oil and gas produced 

from inactive wells and orphan wells. 

 

HB 446 - Rep. Stephanie Hilferty - Provides relative to notifications of public meetings 

and duties of public bodies and the commissioner of administration relative thereto. 

 

HB 617 - Rep. Daryl Deshotel - Provides relative to broadband. 

 

 

Page 4



HB 680 - Rep. Josh Carlson - Provides for an alternate official journal of the state and 

alternate official journals of political subdivisions. 

 

HB 688 - Rep. Ed Larvadain - Provides relative to training requirements for local 

government officials. 

 

HB 700 - Rep. Daryl Deshotel - Provides relative to broadband. 

 

SB 64 - Senator Mike Reese - Provides for changes to the Water Sector Program. 

 

SB 73 - Senator Glen Womack - Creates and provides for the Community Sewerage 

System Infrastructure Sustainability Act. 

 

Severance Tax 

 

Both the House and Senate Clerks have ruled that the severance tax reallocation bills from last 

year cannot be re-filed this year, as this is not a fiscal session. However, it is possible this issue 

could be addressed in the upcoming special session on the constitution.  

 

TDRG is currently looking at alternative ways to dedicate some portion of the severance tax this 

session that would pass the “non-fiscal” rulings of the clerks this session.  

 

Capital Outlay 

 

Administrator Michael Norton attended a meeting with TDRG and the Governor’s staff in Baton 

Rouge relative to the DPPJ’s capital outlay request. This was a good opportunity for the 

Governor’s staff to be briefed on the severance tax issue, and for us to make the correlation 

known between our capital outlay request and the severance tax issue. The TDRG team met 

with the Division of Administration and had the same conversation.  

 

 

Page 5



Page 6



Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



 

DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY  

February 20, 2024 at 5:05 PM  
Regular Meeting  

Police Jury Meeting Room, 101 Franklin Street, Mansfield, LA 71052  

MINUTES 

A.    CALL TO ORDER 

PRESENT 

District 1A Jimmy Holmes 
District 1B Bubba Clark 
District 1C Keith Parker 

District 2 Robert Latham 
District 3 Greg Baker 

District 4A Richard Fuller 
District 4B Jeri Burrell 
District 4C Ernel Jones 

District 4D Trina Boyd-Simpson 
District 5 Nick Rains 

District 6 Rodriguez Ross 
 

B.    INVOCATION 

Done in previous meeting 
 

C.    PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Done in previous meeting 

D.    ANNOUNCEMENTS 

None 

E.    CALL FOR ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 

Motion to defer item 13 to the Committee Meeting in March 

Motion made by District 6 Ross. 
Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1B Clark, District 1C Parker, District 2 Latham, 

District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, District 4D Boyd-
Simpson, District 5 Rains, District 6 Ross 

 

F.    GUEST AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 

None 

Page 31



Minutes DeSoto Parish Police Jury February 20, 2024 

 

G.    PRESIDENT'S REPORT 

None 

H.     COUNSEL'S REPORT 

None 

I.     ADMINISTRATOR'S REPORT 

1. Michael Norton, Parish Administrator's written report 

Michael Norton, Parish Administrator's presented his written report and 

answered questions posed by individual jurors. 
 

J.     LOBBYIST'S REPORT 

2. Mr. McNeely with the Delta Resource Group written report 

Mr. McNeely with the Delta Resource Group presented his written report and 

answered questions posed by individual jurors. 

K.    TREASURER'S FINANCIAL REPORT 

3. Accept the Financial Statements as of January 31, 2024 and Year to Date 

Budget to actual report 

Ms. Garcia, Parish Treasurer, presented the draft January 31, 2024 Financials 

and reported no funds deficit 

Motion made by District 3 Baker, Seconded by District 4C Jones. 
Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1B Clark, District 1C Parker, District 2 

Latham, District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, 
District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Rains, District 6 Ross 

 

L.    APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

4. Approve the January 18, 2024 Regular Meeting, February 5, 2024 

Administrative, Budget and Finance, Road, Solid Waste, Policy and Procedures, 
Insurance, Buildings and Properties, and Special Meeting 

Motion made by District 4A Fuller, Seconded by District 4D Boyd-Simpson. 

Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1B Clark, District 1C Parker, District 2 
Latham, District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, 

District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Rains, District 6 Ross 
 

M.    OLD BUSINESS 

Page 32



Minutes DeSoto Parish Police Jury February 20, 2024 

 

5. Appoint Gabriel Whitaker to the Waterworks District No. 1 Board of 
Commissions 

Motion made by District 4A Fuller, Seconded by District 5 Rains. 

Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1B Clark, District 1C Parker, District 2 
Latham, District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, 

District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Rains, District 6 Ross 
 

6. Appoint Ashley Hadwin to the Planning Commission serving a six (6) year term. 

Motion made by District 4B Burrell, Seconded by District 4A Fuller. 
Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1B Clark, District 1C Parker, District 3 

Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, District 4D Boyd-
Simpson, District 6 Ross 

Voting Nay: District 2 Latham, District 5 Rains 
 

N.    NEW BUSINESS 

7. Executive Session in compliance with La. R. S. 42:17; (2) Strategy sessions or 
negotiations with respect to collective bargaining, prospective litigation after 

formal written demand, or litigation when an open meeting would have a 
detrimental effect on the bargaining or litigating position of the public body. 

NOTICE OF EXECUTIVE SESSION 

The DeSoto Parish Police Jury is providing notice pursuant to Louisiana Revised 
Statute 42:17 that it will b convening for an executive session as authorized by 

Louisiana Revised Statute 42:17 (A)(2) and that it intends to enter into the 
session for the purposes of discussing the lawsuit filed by David B. Means, et al 
against the DeSoto Parish Police Jury in the United States District Curt Western 

District Of Louisianan, Shreveport Division, Civil Action No. 5:23-CV-00669. The 
discussions in this executive session will be limited to matters exempt from the 

open meeting requirements set forth in Louisiana Law. NO final or binding 
action will be taken during this executive session. 

Motion made by District 4C Jones, Seconded by District 1C Parker. 

Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1B Clark, District 1C Parker, District 2 
Latham, District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, 

District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Rains, District 6 Ross 
 

O.    RESOLUTIONS 

8. Adopt a Resolution appointing Treasurer for a two (2) Year term 

Motion made by District 4C Jones, Seconded by District 4A Fuller. 

Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1B Clark, District 1C Parker, District 2 
Latham, District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, 

Page 33



Minutes DeSoto Parish Police Jury February 20, 2024 

 

District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Rains, District 6 Ross 
 

9. Recommends authorizing the President to sign a Resolution and agreement with 

NORWELA Council - Boy Scouts of America 

Motion made by District 1A Holmes, Seconded by District 5 Rains. 

Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1B Clark, District 1C Parker, District 2 
Latham, District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, 

District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Rains, District 6 Ross 
 

10. Recommends authorizing the President to sign a Resolution for various legal 

documents including but not limited to leases, agreements and contracts 
approved by the Police Jury 

Motion made by District 3 Baker, Seconded by District 4D Boyd-Simpson. 

Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1B Clark, District 1C Parker, District 2 
Latham, District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, 

District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Rains, District 6 Ross 
 

11. Recommends authorizing the President to sign a Resolution to call for an 

election allowing the Jury to implement a re-dedication of the Sales Tax (10% 
of the 1% tax levy) 

Motion made by District 1A Holmes, Seconded by District 3 Baker. 
Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1B Clark, District 1C Parker, District 2 

Latham, District 3 Baker, District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Rains, District 6 
Ross 
Voting Nay: District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones 

Voting Abstaining: District 4A Fuller 
 

12. Recommends authorizing the President to sign a Resolution to allow the 

President or the Administrator to sign leases, agreements, change orders and 
contracts for items that are already approved in the budget  

Motion made by District 3 Baker, Seconded by District 1B Clark. 
Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1B Clark, District 2 Latham, District 3 

Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, District 4D Boyd-
Simpson, District 5 Rains, District 6 Ross 

Voting Nay: District 1C Parker 
 

P.    ORDINANCES 

Q.    ADMINISTRATIVE ITEMS 

13. Recommends authorizing the Administrator to sign a letter of support for DESRi 

in participation of a PILOT program 

Page 34



Minutes DeSoto Parish Police Jury February 20, 2024 

 

Deferred 

14. Recommends authorizing the President to sign a Cooperative Endeavor 

Agreement with DeSoto Habilitation Service, Inc. and amend the budget in the 
amount of $33,300 

Motion made by District 4C Jones, Seconded by District 4B Burrell. 

Voting Yea: District 1B Clark, District 1C Parker, District 2 Latham, District 3 
Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, District 5 Rains, 

District 6 Ross 
Voting Nay: District 1A Holmes 
Voting Abstaining: District 4D Boyd-Simpson 

 

15. Recommends authorizing the President to sign a Cooperative Endeavor 

Agreement with the Krewe of Aquarius  

Motion made by District 4D Boyd-Simpson, Seconded by District 1B Clark. 
Voting Yea: District 1B Clark, District 2 Latham, District 3 Baker, District 4A 

Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 
Rains, District 6 Ross 

Voting Nay: District 1A Holmes, District 1C Parker 
 

16. Authorize the President to discuss with the State Legislatures to sponsor term 

limits for the DeSoto Parish Police Jury 

Motion made by District 2 Latham, Seconded by District 5 Rains. 

Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1B Clark, District 1C Parker, District 2 
Latham, District 3 Baker, District 5 Rains 
Voting Nay: District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, District 4D 

Boyd-Simpson, District 6 Ross 
 

17. Recommends authorizing the President to sign the Intergovernmental 

Agreement between DeSoto Parish and Red River Parish concerning the 
replacement of the Westdale Plantation Bridge. 

Motion made by District 1C Parker, Seconded by District 1A Holmes. 
Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1B Clark, District 1C Parker, District 2 

Latham, District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, 
District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Rains, District 6 Ross 

 

18. Recommends authorizing the President to sign a Cooperative Endeavor 
Agreement with DeSoto Athletics Little League for improvements at the Grand 

Cane Ball Park and amend the budget in the amount of $55,000 to install lights 
for batting cages and BBQ Shed 

Motion made by District 4D Boyd-Simpson, Seconded by District 2 Latham. 

Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1B Clark, District 1C Parker, District 2 

Page 35



Minutes DeSoto Parish Police Jury February 20, 2024 

 

Latham, District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4D Boyd-
Simpson, District 5 Rains, District 6 Ross 

Voting Nay: District 4C Jones 
 

19. Recommends authorizing the President to sign a Cooperative Endeavor 

Agreement with the Mansfield Civic Group, LLc and amend the budget in the 
amount of $10,000 to help with the Juneteenth Celebration 

Motion made by District 4A Fuller, Seconded by District 4B Burrell. 

Voting Yea: District 1B Clark, District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B 
Burrell, District 4C Jones, District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 6 Ross 

Voting Nay: District 1A Holmes, District 1C Parker, District 2 Latham, District 5 
Rains 

 

R.    BUDGET AND FINANCE ITEMS 

20. Recommends to go out for more bids for Hog Eradication and try to get local 

vendors 

Motion made by District 1C Parker, Seconded by District 1B Clark. 

Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1B Clark, District 1C Parker, District 2 
Latham, District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, 
District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Rains, District 6 Ross 

 

S.    BUILDINGS AND PROPERTIES & PARKS AND RECREATIONAL ITEMS 

21. Recommends amending the budget not exceed $175,000 to construct a parking  

lot at the 4H Building to accommodate large animal trailers for 4H  competitions 
coming from Economic Development. 

Motion made by District 1A Holmes, Seconded by District 2 Latham. 
Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1B Clark, District 1C Parker, District 2 

Latham, District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 
Rains, District 6 Ross 
Voting Nay: District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones 

 

22. Recommends opening the ball park from 7 am to dark and amend the budget 

for cameras 

Motion made by District 4A Fuller, Seconded by District 4B Burrell. 

Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1B Clark, District 1C Parker, District 2 
Latham, District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, 
District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Rains, District 6 Ross 

 

T.    INSURANCE ITEMS 

Page 36



Minutes DeSoto Parish Police Jury February 20, 2024 

 

23. Recommends authorizing the Police Jury to allow an optional supplemental 
portable  guaranteed issued whole life insurance policy for all Police Jury  

employees, spouses, children and grandchildren at no cost to the Police  Jury 
and authorize the President to sign any necessary agreements that  has been 
reviewed by counsel for payroll deduction as payment for the  policy. 

Motion made by District 1A Holmes, Seconded by District 5 Rains. 
Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1B Clark, District 1C Parker, District 2 

Latham, District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, 
District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Rains, District 6 Ross 
 

U.   PERSONNEL ITEMS 

24. Recommends authorizing adding General Office Clerk Position at the Airport and 

Maintenance (converting from part time to full time already approved in 2024 
Budget) 

Motion made by District 4A Fuller, Seconded by District 4C Jones. 

Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1B Clark, District 1C Parker, District 2 
Latham, District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, 

District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Rains, District 6 Ross 
 

25. Recommends authorizing changing the Job description for the Assistant Solid 

Waste Superintendent  - Landfill Operations to "Possess a Level 1, Class B Solid 
Waste Operator's Certification and must be able to get a Class A Solid Waste 

Operator's Certificate within 9 months 

Motion made by District 2 Latham, Seconded by District 3 Baker. 
Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1B Clark, District 1C Parker, District 2 

Latham, District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, 
District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Rains, District 6 Ross 

 

V.    POLICY AND PROCEDURES ITEMS 

26. Recommends adopting Policy 511 - Sexual Abuse, Molestation and Misconduct 

Prevention Policy 

Motion made by District 4D Boyd-Simpson, Seconded by District 1B Clark. 

Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1B Clark, District 1C Parker, District 2 
Latham, District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, 

District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Rains, District 6 Ross 
 

27. Recommends adopting Policy 607- Inclement Weather Policy 

Motion made by District 4C Jones, Seconded by District 5 Rains. 
Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1B Clark, District 1C Parker, District 2 

Latham, District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, 

Page 37



Minutes DeSoto Parish Police Jury February 20, 2024 

 

District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Rains, District 6 Ross 
 

28. Recommends updating the Employee Handbook definition of a family member 

to include legal guardian, grandchildren and grandparents  

Motion made by District 4A Fuller, Seconded by District 4D Boyd-Simpson. 

Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1B Clark, District 2 Latham, District 3 
Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, District 4D Boyd-

Simpson, District 5 Rains, District 6 Ross 
Voting Nay: District 1C Parker 
 

29. Recommends updating the $30,000 threshold to $60,000 to the Purchasing 
Policy and Procedures for materials and Supplies as per State Law that became 

effective 8/2022 

Motion made by District 3 Baker, Seconded by District 1C Parker. 
Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1B Clark, District 1C Parker, District 2 

Latham, District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, 
District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Rains, District 6 Ross 

 

W.    ROAD ITEMS 

30. Recommends authorizing the President to sign the Annual DOTD Uniform 

Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Act Assurance Letter 

Motion made by District 3 Baker, Seconded by District 4C Jones. 

Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1B Clark, District 1C Parker, District 2 
Latham, District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, 
District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Rains, District 6 Ross 

 

31. Recommends installing three (3) speed bumps on Evans Loop off of Hwy 509 in 

Carmel 

Motion made by District 6 Ross, Seconded by District 4C Jones. 
Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1B Clark, District 1C Parker, District 2 

Latham, District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, District 4D 
Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Rains, District 6 Ross 

Voting Nay: District 3 Baker 
 

32. Recommends changing all Private Road Signs to the color blue. 

Motion made by District 1C Parker, Seconded by District 6 Ross. 
Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1B Clark, District 1C Parker, District 2 

Latham, District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, 
District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Rains, District 6 Ross 

 

Page 38



Minutes DeSoto Parish Police Jury February 20, 2024 

 

33. Recommends adding two (2) speed bumps on Red Bluff Road on East End 

Motion made by District 4A Fuller, Seconded by District 4B Burrell. 

Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1B Clark, District 1C Parker, District 2 
Latham, District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, District 4D 
Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Rains, District 6 Ross 

Voting Nay: District 3 Baker 
 

X.    SOLID WASTE ITEMS 

34. Recommends authorizing the President to sign the Short Form Agreement 
Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services with Forte and Tablada, 

Inc. for the US 84 Safety Turn Lane at the Mundy Landfill 

Motion made by District 6 Ross, Seconded by District 1C Parker. 

Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1B Clark, District 1C Parker, District 2 
Latham, District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, 
District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Rains, District 6 Ross 

 

35. Recommends authorizing the Administrator to sign the Scope of Work and Cost 

Estimate with Providence for conducting quarterly surface emission monitoring 
for 2024 at the Mundy Landfill in the amount of $9,600 

Motion made by District 4C Jones, Seconded by District 4B Burrell. 

Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1B Clark, District 1C Parker, District 2 
Latham, District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, 

District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Rains, District 6 Ross 
 

Y.  ADJOURN 

Motion made by District 4C Jones, Seconded by District 4B Burrell. 
 

Page 39



 

DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY  

March 04, 2024 at 5:00 PM  
Administrative Committee Meeting  

Police Jury Meeting Room, 101 Franklin Street, Mansfield, LA 71052  

MINUTES 

 

A.  CALL TO ORDER 

PRESENT 

District 1A, Chairman Jimmy Holmes 
District 1B Bubba Clark 
District 1C Keith Parker 

District 2 Robert Latham 
District 3 Greg Baker 

District 4A Richard Fuller 
District 4B Jeri Burrell 

District 4C Ernel Jones 
District 4D Trina Boyd-Simpson 
District 5 Nick Rains 

District 6 Rodriguez Ross 
 

B.   INVOCATION 

Given by District 6 Ross. 
 

C.   PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

D.   PRESIDENT'S REPORT 

None 

E.    LEGAL COUNSEL'S REPORT 

None 

F.    CALL FOR ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS 

1. Discuss and appoint Ashley Hadwin or Betty Carter to Planning Commission serving a 

six (6) year term 

2. Approve the recommendation by the DeSoto Parish Planning Commission suggesting 
implementing a moratorium for a period of one (1) year on subdivided land if the lots are 

Page 40



Minutes DeSoto Parish Police Jury March 04, 2024 

 

one acre or larger and do not have frontage to an existing parish or state maintained 
roadway, unless they meet all the DeSoto Parish Subdivision Regulations requirements 

3. Approve the recommendation by the DeSoto Parish Planning Commission suggesting 

implementing a moratorium for a period of six (6) months on all future subdivisions, to 
disallow the selling of any lots by the developer utilizing the statement, "clear title is not 

available on any lot until all improvements and installations have been made", as a stated 
condition in Part III Section D-3 in the DeSoto Parish Subdivision Regulations. The 

developer will be allowed to sell lots if one of the three remaining conditions listed in Part 
III Section D-1, D-2 and D-4 are met  
 

Motion made by District 4C Jones, Seconded by District 4D Boyd-Simpson. 
Voting Yea: District 1A, Chairman Holmes, District 1B Clark, District 1C Parker, District 2 

Latham, District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, District 
4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Rains, District 6 Ross 
 

G.    GUEST AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 

1. Richard Jefferson - Medicaid 

Absent 

H.    ADMINISTRATIVE ITEMS 

2. Authorize the President to sign a Resolution to declare certain moveable 

property surplus and schedule a sale of surplus as per State Law 

Motion made by District 3 Baker, Seconded by District 1C Parker. 

Voting Yea: District 1A, Chairman Holmes, District 2 Latham, District 3 Baker, 
District 4A Fuller, District 4C Jones, District 5 Rains, District 6 Ross 
 

3. Adopt Ordinance 1 of 2024 Authorizing an Ad Valorem Exemption for First 
Responders 

Motion made by District 2 Latham, Seconded by District 3 Baker. 

Voting Yea: District 1B Clark, District 2 Latham 
Voting Nay: District 1A, Chairman Holmes, District 1C Parker, District 3 Baker, 

District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, District 4D Boyd-
Simpson, District 5 Rains, District 6 Ross 

 

4. Discuss and take action on selling the property at the Sheriff's Training Facility 

to the Sheriff''s Office located at 120 Sprocket Lane 

Alternate motion that we sell the property located at the Sheriff's Training 
Facility,120 Sprocket Lane, to Sheriff at Market value and all proceeds be 

dedicated to the Jail Fund. 
 

Page 41



Minutes DeSoto Parish Police Jury March 04, 2024 

 

Motion made by District 1C Parker. 
Voting Yea: District 1C Parker, District 2 Latham, District 3 Baker, District 4A 

Fuller, District 5 Rains, District 6 Ross 
Voting Nay: District 1A, Chairman Holmes, District 1B Clark, District 4B Burrell, 
District 4C Jones, District 4D Boyd-Simpson 

 

5. Authorize the President to sign a Resolution approving the issuance, sale and 

delivery of a Taxable Excess Revenue Bond of Waterworks District No. 1 of the 
Parish of DeSoto, State of Louisiana, in the amount not to exceed $500,000; 
and providing for other matters relating thereto 

Motion made by District 3 Baker, Seconded by District 4D Boyd-Simpson. 
Voting Yea: District 1A, Chairman Holmes, District 1B Clark, District 1C Parker, 

District 2 Latham, District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 
4C Jones, District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Rains, District 6 Ross 
 

6. Approve the updated Rules and  By Laws 

Defer approval of the updated Rules and By Laws to April Committee Meeting 

 

Motion made by District 4B Burrell, Seconded by District 4A Fuller. 
Voting Yea: District 1C Parker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4D 

Boyd-Simpson 
Voting Nay: District 1A, Chairman Holmes, District 1B Clark, District 2 Latham, 

District 3 Baker, District 4C Jones, District 5 Rains, District 6 Ross 

Approve the updated Rules and Bylaws 

Motion made by District 3 Baker, Seconded by District 1A, Chairman Holmes. 

Voting Yea: District 1A, Chairman Holmes, District 1B Clark, District 1C Parker, 
District 2 Latham, District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4C Jones, District 

4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Rains, District 6 Ross 
Voting Nay: District 4B Burrell 
 

7. Discuss and Appoint Ashley Hadwin or Betty Carter to the Planning Commission 
serving a six (6) year term 

Motion made by District 4C Jones, Seconded by District 5 Rains. 
Voting Yea: District 1A, Chairman Holmes, District 1B Clark, District 1C Parker, 

District 2 Latham, District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 
4C Jones, District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Rains, District 6 Ross 
 

8. Approve the Recommendation by the DeSoto Parish Planning Commission 
suggesting implementing a moratorium for a period of one (1) year on 

subdivided land if the lots are one acre or larger and do not have frontage to an 

Page 42



Minutes DeSoto Parish Police Jury March 04, 2024 

 

existing parish or state maintained roadway, unless they meet all the DeSoto 
Parish Subdivision Regulations requirements. 

Motion made by District 6 Ross, Seconded by District 4D Boyd-Simpson. 

Voting Yea: District 1A, Chairman Holmes, District 1B Clark, District 1C Parker, 
District 2 Latham, District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 

4C Jones, District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Rains, District 6 Ross 
 

9. Approve the recommendation by the DeSoto Parish Planning Commission 

suggesting implementing a moratorium for a period of six (6) months on all 
future subdivisions, to disallow the selling of any lots by the developer utilizing 

the statement, "clear title is not available on any lot until all improvements and 
installations have been made", as stated condition in Part III Section D-3 in the 

DeSoto Parish Subdivision Regulations. The developer will be allowed to sell lots 
if one of the three remaining conditions listed in Part III Section D-1, D-2 and 
D-4 are met. 

Motion made by District 6 Ross, Seconded by District 4D Boyd-Simpson. 
Voting Yea: District 1A, Chairman Holmes, District 1B Clark, District 1C Parker, 

District 2 Latham, District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 
4C Jones, District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Rains, District 6 Ross 
 

I.     ADJOURN 

Motion made by District 1C Parker, Seconded by District 6 Ross. 

Voting Yea: District 1A, Chairman Holmes, District 1B Clark, District 1C Parker, District 2 
Latham, District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, District 
4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Rains, District 6 Ross 

 

Page 43



 

DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY  

March 04, 2024 at 5:01 PM  
Budget and Finance Committee Meeting  

Police Jury Meeting Room, 101 Franklin Street, Mansfield, LA 71052  

MINUTES 

 

A.    CALL TO ORDER 

PRESENT 

District 3, Chairman Greg Baker 
District 4D Trina Boyd-Simpson 

District 4A Richard Fuller 
District 4C Ernel Jones 

District 2 Robert Latham 
 

B.    CALL FOR ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS 

None 

C.    GUEST AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 

None 

D.    BUDGET AND FINANCE ITEMS 

1. Authorize the President to sign a Cooperative Endeavor Agreement with The 

Town of Logansport and amend the budget in the amount of $5,000 for help 
with the River City Festival 

Motion made by District 4A Fuller, Seconded by District 4C Jones. 

Voting Yea: District 3, Chairman Baker, District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 4A 
Fuller, District 4C Jones, District 2 Latham 

 

2. Authorize the President to sign a Cooperative Endeavor Agreement with Fire 

District #1 and amend the budget in the amount of $2,500 for help with the 4th 
of July Fire Works Dispaly  

Motion made by District 4A Fuller, Seconded by District 4C Jones. 

Voting Yea: District 3, Chairman Baker, District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 4A 
Fuller, District 4C Jones, District 2 Latham 

 

3. Award low bid for vehicles 

Page 44



Minutes DeSoto Parish Police Jury March 04, 2024 

 

E.    ADJOURN 

Page 45



 

DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY  

March 04, 2024 at 5:03 PM  
Solid Waste Committee  

Police Jury Meeting Room, 101 Franklin Street, Mansfield, LA 71052  

MINUTES 

 

A.    CALL TO ORDER 

PRESENT 

District 3, Chairman Greg Baker 
District 4C Ernel Jones 

District 4A Richard Fuller 
District 1A Jimmy Holmes 

District 1C Keith Parker 
 

B.    CALL FOR ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS 

None 

C.    GUEST AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 

None 

D.    SOLID WASTE ITEMS 

1. Award high bid for scrap metal 

Motion made by District 1C Parker, Seconded by District 4C Jones. 
Voting Yea: District 3, Chairman Baker, District 1A Holmes, District 1C Parker 

Voting Nay: District 4C Jones, District 4A Fuller 
 

2. Discuss and take action for the purchase in the Town of Stonewall for the 

purpose of constructing a new compactor site 

Alternate motion to defer to the May Committee Meeting 

 

Motion made by District 1A Holmes, Seconded by District 1C Parker. 
Voting Yea: District 4C Jones, District 1A Holmes, District 1C Parker 

Voting Nay: District 3, Chairman Baker, District 4A Fuller 
 

3. Award low bid for two (2) roll off trucks at the Landfill 

Page 46



Minutes DeSoto Parish Police Jury March 04, 2024 

 

Motion made by District 1C Parker, Seconded by District 1A Holmes. 
Voting Yea: District 3, Chairman Baker, District 4C Jones, District 4A Fuller, 

District 1A Holmes, District 1C Parker 
 

E.    ADJOURN 

Page 47



 

DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY  

March 04, 2024 at 5:04 PM 
 Personnel Committee Meeting 
 

Police Jury Meeting Room, 101 Franklin Street, 

Mansfield, LA 71052  101 Franklin Street, Mansfield, LA 71052 

 

MINUTES 

 

A.    CALL TO ORDER 

PRESENT 
District 4B, Chairwoman Jeri Burrell 

District 4D Trina Boyd-Simpson 
District 1B Bubba Clark 

District 1A Jimmy Holmes 
District 1C Keith Parker 
 

B.    CALL FOR ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS 

None 

C.    GUEST AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 

D.    PERSONNEL ITEMS 

1. Approve the Job Description and position for Engineering Technician 

(Construction Supervisor) 

Motion made by District 4D Boyd-Simpson, Seconded by District 1C Parker. 

Voting Yea: District 4B, Chairwoman Burrell, District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 
1B Clark, District 1A Holmes, District 1C Parker 
 

E.    ADJOURN 

Motion made by District 1C Parker, Seconded by District 4D Boyd-Simpson. 

Voting Yea: District 4B, Chairwoman Burrell, District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 1B Clark, 
District 1A Holmes, District 1C Parker 
 

Page 48



 

DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY  

March 04, 2024 at 5:05 PM  
Road Committee Meeting  

Police Jury Meeting Room, 101 Franklin Street, Mansfield, LA 71052  

MINUTES 

 

A.    CALL TO ORDER 

PRESENT 

District 4C, Chairman Ernel Jones 
District 1A Jimmy Holmes 

District 5 Nick Rains 
District 1C Keith Parker 

District 4A Richard Fuller 
 

B.    CALL FOR ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS 

C.    GUEST AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 

None 

D.    ROAD ITEMS 

1. Approve the E911 naming of Chiasson Pvt Dr off of Depot Road in Keachi and 
Florida Pvt Dr. off of  Cowboy Lane in Keachi 

Motion made by District 1A Holmes, Seconded by District 4A Fuller. 
Voting Yea: District 4C, Chairman Jones, District 1A Holmes, District 5 Rains, 

District 1C Parker, District 4A Fuller 
 

E.    ADJOURN 

Motion made by District 1A Holmes, Seconded by District 4A Fuller. 
Voting Yea: District 4C, Chairman Jones, District 1A Holmes, District 5 Rains, District 1C 

Parker, District 4A Fuller 
 

Page 49



Road Department

Fixed Asset No. Fleet ID# Name # Serial No. 

223 4 150 76Y00806                                     

230 20 303 P00110x020016

496 28 336 T0310GX896849

605 137 T1 14199

926 153 T2 14350

45 15 T-26 1M2P264CXWMO24822

927 164 T3 14268

928 175 T4 1W9BP14207P458003                            

1159 221 T81 1FVHC5DV1CDBL5831

1344 235 T94 1FD8W3GT0FED09414                            

Office of Community Services

Fixed Asset No. Fleet ID# Name # Serial No. 

none 96 OCS2 1FTYR10012PA96023

none 65 OCS67 1FTYR18052P832733

1394 256 OCS1 1FMCU0F74GUC51205                            

Solid Waste 

Fixed Asset No. Fleet ID# Name # Serial No. 

1166 101 SW02 14012

1169 100 SW01 14863

103 108 SW10 DW670BX518054

1532 none none 30792

1294 none none 39260

943 138 T10 46921

1347 125 SW27 3C6TR5HT6FG593843

314620406

Animal Control 

Fixed Asset No. Fleet ID# Name # Serial No. 

none none none none

none none none none

Main Office

Fixed Asset No. Fleet ID# Name # Serial No. 

none none none none

none none none none

none none none OHTYA41452

none none none CN-ODC327-71618-613-AGMW

none none none TST163080486

none none none E-E011-04-4416(A)

none none none CN-OR684K-70820

none none none HSTNS-3175

none none none 1GK3J02

none none none 1GK4J02

none none none SY0381000182

Page 50



none none none 107228420

none none none 5CD451345J

none none none ZA082927K

none none none 107390569

none none none 107237061

none none none CNU8321BTO

none none none C4DL4G1

none none none CNF62510XY

Page 51



Description 

1982 Caterpillar Cat Loader 

1998 John Deere Track Hoe (Excavator)

2001 John Deere Backhoe/Loader Model 310G

Dura Patcher 2006 Model 125 DJT

Dura Patcher 2007 Model 125 DJT

1998 Mack Model RD690S Truck

Dura Patcher 2007 Model 125 DJT

2007 Langston T7500 Patcher

2012 Freightliner MM1120645 

2015 Ford Model F350

Description 

2002 Ford Ranger

2002 Ford Ranger

2016 Ford Escape (totaled)

Description 

2010 Al-Jon ADV599 Landfill Compactor 

2011 Al-Jon Landfill Compactor 500C1

2005 John Deere 670 Motorgrader

2019 Kubota ZD1211-60 Zero Turn Mower 

Kubota 20326P-60 Zero Turn Lawnmower

2006 Rosco Broom Sweeper Mdl RB-48

2015 Ram Dodge 2500

ExMark LZE691KA524 Zero Turn Mower

Description 

2 Foggers - Mosquito Control

Approximately 20- 55 gallon drums of mosquito spray

Description 

Office Chairs and Furniture

Wooden Chairs in Jury Meeting Room

PANASONIC LAPTOP CF-52

Dell 14' Monitor 14' MONITOR WD-04

VIEWSONIC MONITOR VS15453

CISCO 48-PORT SWITCH (OLD BLUEBIRD DR SITE) CATALYST 3560-G POE-48

DELL DISK SAN (OLD BLUEBIRD DR SITE) POWERVAULT 3220I

HP PROLIANT SERVER (OLD BLUEBIRD DR SITE) DL120 G6

DELL SERVER (OLD BLUEBIRD DR SITE) R620 - HOST MACHINE 1

DELL SERVER (OLD BLUEBIRD DR SITE) R620 - HOST MACHINE 2

PANASONIC LAPTOP WL-5100AGN

Page 52



ULTRA LAPTOP SYX-MS-163K

HP LAPTOP 15-1023WM

TOSHIBA LAPTOP L675D-S7049

ULTRA LAPTOP SYX-MS-163K

ULTRA LAPTOP SYX-MS-163K

HP LAPTOP HP550

DELL LAPTOP PP04X

HP PAVILLION LAPTOP DV1000

Page 53



The following resolution was offered by ______________________ and seconded by 

________________________: 

RESOLUTION 

 

A resolution approving the issuance, sale and delivery of a Taxable 

Excess Revenue Bond of Waterworks District No. 1 of the Parish of 

DeSoto, State of Louisiana, in an amount not to exceed $500,000; 

and providing for other matters relating thereto. 

 

WHEREAS, the Board of Waterworks Commissioners of Waterworks District No. 1 of the 

Parish of DeSoto, State of Louisiana, acting as the governing authority of Waterworks District No. 

1 of the Parish of DeSoto, State of Louisiana (the "Issuer"), by resolution adopted on February 26, 

2024, has authorized the issuance of a not exceeding $500,000 Taxable Excess Revenue Bond (the 

"Bond") for the purpose of (i) paying a portion of the costs of constructing and acquiring 

improvements, extensions, renovations and replacements to the waterworks system of the Issuer 

(the "System"), including equipment, fixtures and accessories therefor, both personal and real, a 

work of public improvement for the Issuer, and (ii) paying the costs of issuance of the Bond, 

pursuant to R.S. 39:526 and the other applicable provisions of Part II of Chapter 4 of Subtitle II of 

Title 39 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950, as amended, and other constitutional and 

statutory authority, said Bond to be secured by the income and revenues derived or to be derived 

from the operation of the System; and 

 

WHEREAS, it is now the desire of the Police Jury of the Parish of DeSoto, State of 

Louisiana, to approve the issuance of the Bond; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Police Jury of the Parish of DeSoto, State 

of Louisiana, acting as the governing authority of the Parish of DeSoto, State of Louisiana, that: 

 

SECTION 1.  In compliance with the provisions of Article VI, Section 15 of the 

Constitution of the State of Louisiana of 1974, and in accordance with the request of the Board of 

Waterworks Commissioners of the Issuer, this Police Jury hereby approves the issuance, sale and 

delivery of a not exceeding $500,000 Taxable Excess Revenue Bond of Waterworks District No. 

1 of the Parish of DeSoto, State of Louisiana, said Bond to be issued under the authority, for the 

purposes and to be payable from the sources stated in the preamble hereto. The Bond shall mature 

not later than 10 years from the date thereof and be non-interest bearing. The principal of the Bond 

shall be subject to complete forgiveness.  

Page 54



 

SECTION 2.  Neither the Parish nor this Police Jury shall be liable in any manner for the 

payment of the Bond. 

 This resolution having been submitted to a vote, the vote thereon was as follows: 

 YEAS:   

 

 NAYS:   

 

 ABSENT:   

 

And the resolution was declared adopted on this, the 18th day of March, 2024. 

 

                /s/ Jodi Zeigler                               /s/ Ernel Jones      

                       Secretary                              President 

 

Page 55



STATE OF LOUISIANA 

PARISH OF DESOTO 

I, the undersigned Secretary of the Police Jury of the Parish of DeSoto, State of Louisiana 

(the "Governing Authority"), acting as the governing authority of the Parish of DeSoto, State of 

Louisiana, do hereby certify that the foregoing pages constitute a true and correct copy of a 

resolution adopted by the Governing Authority on March 18, 2023, approving the issuance, sale 

and delivery of a Taxable Excess Revenue Bond of Waterworks District No. 1 of the Parish of 

DeSoto, State of Louisiana, and providing for other matters relating thereto. 

IN FAITH WHEREOF, witness my official signature on this, the 18th day of March, 2024. 

 

 

____________________________________ 

                 Secretary 

 

Page 56



 

 

 

RULES AND BY-LAWS OF THE DESOTO 

PARISH POLICE JURY OF DESOTO PARISH 

LOUISIANA 

 
ARTICLE I 

 
Powers and Duties of the 

President 
 

 

RULE 1:    The President shall take the Chair on the first and third Monday of each month at 

5 :00 p.m., unless otherwise provided by the DeSoto Parish Police Jury 

(hereinafter sometimes referred to as “Police Jury”). In case the President is 

absent or unable to preside, the Vice President shall call the DeSoto Parish Police 

Jury to order and preside during the absence or inability of the President. The 

President shall call the DeSoto Parish Police Jury to order, direct a call of the roll, 

and, except in the absence of a quorum, proceed to conduct business in a manner 

prescribed by these rules. A special meeting may be called by the President 

upon twenty-four hours’ notice, but not on weekends or holidays, except in 

extreme emergencies. 

 

RULE 2: The President shall possess the following powers and perform the following 
duties: 

 
A. He shall preserve order and decorum. 

 
B. He shall decide all questions of order subject to appeal to the DeSoto 

Parish Police Jury. 

 
C. In the Vice President’s absence, he may substitute any member of 

the DeSoto Parish Police Jury to perform the duties of the Vice President. 

 
D. When the DeSoto Parish Police Jury convenes a Committee of the 

Whole, he shall preside therein or name a Chairman from the body to 

preside therein. 

 
E. He shall be an ex officio member of all committees and shall have the right 

of notice of all meetings thereof. In the President’s absence, the Vice 

President shall serve as an ex officio member. 

Page 57



F. He shall assign all members of the DeSoto Parish Police Jury to their 

respective committees and chairmanships. 

 
G. He shall represent the DeSoto Parish Police Jury in all public functions, 

ceremonies, and events, or assign this responsibility to another member. 

 
H. He shall be authorized to assign DeSoto Parish Police Jury members 

to represent t h e DeSoto Parish Police Jury on all boards and 

commissions with ratification by the DeSoto Parish Police Jury. 

 
RULE 3:    All of the above duties and responsibilities of the President apply to the 

Vice President in the absence or at the direction of the President, including 

the right of notice to all meetings. 

 
 

ARTICLE II 

 
Order of Business 

 
 

RULE 1:    Except as otherwise authorized by a majority vote of the members of the 

DeSoto Parish Police Jury, the business of each DeSoto Parish Police Jury 

Regular Meeting is hereby established as follows: 

 
 

A. Roll Call 

B. Invocation 

C. Pledge of Allegiance 

D. Announcements 

E. Call for Additions and Deletions 
F. Public Comments/ Public Hearings 

G. President’s Report 

H. Counsel’s Report 

I. Administrator’s Report 

J. Lobbyist’s Report 

K. Treasurer’s Financial Report 

L. Approval of the minutes of any preceding meeting and correction of any 

errors 

M. Old Business 

N. New Business 

O. Resolutions 

P. Ordinances 

Q. Committee Reports – Approval of Committee Minutes 

R. Adjourn 

Page 58



 

 

RULE 2:  A special meeting called by the President or a majority of the members of the 

Desoto Parish Police Jury shall be conducted in accordance with Louisiana 

law. 

 
 

RULE 3:    Any matter which has been disapproved by a vote of the DeSoto Parish Police 

Jury shall not be reconsidered by the Police Jury for a period of three (3) months, 

unless the entire membership of the Police Jury, by a two-thirds vote approves the 

reconsideration of the matter. 

 
 

ARTICLE III 
 

Rights and Duties of Members of the DeSoto Parish Police Jury 
 

RULE 1:   Petitions, memorials, and any other papers addressed to the DeSoto Parish 
Police Jury shall be presented by the President, Administrator, or by any member. 

 
RULE 2:    All resolutions, ordinances and agenda items shall be submitted to the Secretary 

by 12:00 p.m. on the Monday preceding Committee Meetings and the Wednesday 

preceding the Regular Meetings of the DeSoto Parish Police Jury. The Secretary 

will send out the packets for the Committee Meetings no later than the Wednesday 

proceeding the Committee Meeting and no later than Thursday preceding the 

Regular Meetings.  The Secretary shall make copies or a synopsis of all such 

resolutions, ordinances and agenda items and make them available to all 

members prior to the commencement of such meeting. All resolutions, ordinances 

and agenda items presented to the DeSoto Parish Police Jury shall be reviewed 

and approved as to legal form and content by the DeSoto Parish Police Jury’s 

legal counsel. All resolutions, ordinances and agenda items presented to the 

Secretary in contravention of the time limitations imposed herein shall not be 

considered by the DeSoto Parish Police Jury, unless the agenda of a Committee 

Meeting or Regular Meeting is enlarged in accordance with the applicable 

provisions of Louisiana law. The President shall review Committee Meeting and 

Regular Meeting agendas prior to transmittal to members of the Police Jurors. In 

the event an item is placed on an agenda which, by its very nature is considered 

confidential, including potential economic development projects, personnel 

matters, criminal investigations, litigation and other matters subject to the attorney-

client privilege, the President may remove the item from the agenda, subject to 

consultation with the respective Committee Chairman. 

Page 59



 
 

RULE 3:    Voting shall be recorded electronically or by roll call on resolutions, ordinances 

and agenda items upon a motion of a Police Juror and second by a different Police 

Juror, and the ayes and nays shall be recorded in the minutes of the DeSoto 

Parish Police Jury by the individual vote of each of the Police Jurors. Not less than 

a majority of the membership of the DeSoto Parish Police Jury shall constitute a 

quorum to transact business, but if a quorum is lost during a meeting, a smaller 

number may recess from time to time and compel the attendance of absent Police 

Jurors in the manner and subject to the penalties proscribed by the DeSoto Parish 

Police Jury Rules. To fill any vacancy or vacancies by appointment, and solely for 

the purpose of filling any vacancy or vacancies by appointment, a majority of the 

entire membership of the DeSoto Parish Police Jury shall constitute a majority of 

the remaining Police Jurors. For the purpose(s) of this Rule 3, a vacancy shall 

mean the death, resignation, removal or forfeiture of office of any Police Juror. 

 
RULE 4:   Any member may be recused from voting on any matter in accordance with the 

applicable provisions of Louisiana law. 

 
RULE 5:   A full roll call vote shall be taken on any question whenever requested by a 

member. The election of officers shall be by roll call voice vote. No member shall 

speak during the call of the roll, except to request to be excused from voting. Any 

member desiring to leave the meeting of the DeSoto Parish Police Jury shall notify 

the President. 

 

RULE 6:   All roll call votes shall begin with the member making the motion and 

proceeding clockwise or counterclockwise, as determined by the President or 

Committee Chairman. 

 
ARTICLE IV 

 
Order and Decorum 

 

RULE 1:   No member desiring to engage in debate, to give a notice, to make a motion or 
report, or to present a petition or other paper, shall proceed until the member has 
addressed the President or the Committee Chairman and has been recognized 
by the President or Committee Chairman, as the case may be. 

 
RULE 2:    No member shall speak or carry on any private discourse until a motion is made 

and properly seconded. 

Page 60



 
 
 
 

RULE 3:   While the President is putting a question before the Police Jury or while the roll 

is being called, no member shall speak or leave his place. 

 
RULE 4:   When a motion to adjourn is carried, the members shall keep their seats until the 

President declares the DeSoto Parish Police Jury adjourned. 

 
RULE 5:   No member shall speak more than once on the same question before all 

members of the DeSoto Parish Police Jury desiring to speak have been heard. 

Members wishing to speak shall raise their hand to be placed in order of debate, 

and shall engage in debate when called upon by the President or Chairman of a 

particular Committee. Members of the DeSoto Parish Police Jury shall not speak 

on a question for a period in excess of three (3) minutes, except by a majority vote 

of the Police Jury to authorize additional time. No member shall speak more than 

two times at the same meeting on the same question. Such limitations described 

herein, may be changed upon a majority vote of the DeSoto Parish Police Jury. 

 
RULE 6: If any member transgresses these rules, the President or Chairman of a 

particular Committee shall call the member to order, in which case the member 

called to order shall immediately cease such transgression. In the event the 

member continues to contravene these rules, the President or Chairman shall 

call the member out of order. In cases when a member, after being called out of 

order by the President or Chairman, continues to disrupt the decorum of the 

meeting, the member may be instructed to leave the meeting on order of the 

President or Chairman. In the event such member refuses to leave the meeting, 

the President or Chairman may request the DeSoto Parish Sheriff or his 

designated representative to remove the member from the meeting. 

 
ARTICLE V 

 
Rights and Duties of the Desoto Parish Police Jury 

 

RULE 1:    In the absence of a quorum during a meeting of the DeSoto Parish Police Jury, 
the members present may take such measures as they deem necessary to secure 
the presence of a quorum and may request the Sheriff of DeSoto Parish to compel 
the attendance of any absent member and may impose such censure or pecuniary 
penalty, not exceeding $10.00, as provided in La. R.S. 33:1227- 1235), on a 
member who, on being called for that purpose shall render no sufficient reason 
for his or her absence. 

Page 61



 
 
 
 

RULE 2:   When the DeSoto Parish Police Jury shall be equally divided on any question, 

including the President's vote, the question shall be deemed lost. 

 
RULE 3:    Regular Meetings of the DeSoto Parish Police Jury and Committees Meetings 

shall be open to the public, except when the DeSoto Parish Police Jury or its 
Committee(s) shall meet in executive session in accordance with Louisiana law, 
at which time all persons not invited by the DeSoto Parish Police Jury to remain 
shall be excluded. 

 
RULE 4:   Annually in January, the DeSoto Parish Police Jury shall give written public 

notice of its meetings by resolution showing the dates, times and places of the 

meetings. 

 
RULE 5:   Election of all officers shall be by roll call voice vote. The passage of all other 

questions shall be by voice, hand or electronic vote, and shall be by a majority of 
the members constituting a quorum, unless a larger percentage is required by 
Louisiana law. 

 
RULE 6:    The Parish Administrator shall be appointed by the DeSoto Parish Police Jury 

and shall serve at its pleasure. The Administrator shall be appointed solely on the 

basis of executive, administrative and other qualifications determined by the 

DeSoto Parish Police Jury. The Parish Administrator’s compensation shall be 

fixed by the DeSoto Parish Police Jury. 

 

RULE 7:   The DeSoto Parish Police Jury shall appoint a Secretary of the DeSoto Parish 
Police Jury who shall serve at the pleasure of the DeSoto Parish Police Jury. The 
Secretary shall give notice of the DeSoto Parish Police Jury meetings to its 
members and the public, keep the journal of its proceedings, and perform such 
other duties as are assigned to the position by the DeSoto Parish Police Jury. The 
DeSoto Parish Police Jury shall fix the salary of the Secretary. 

 
RULE 8:   The DeSoto Parish Police Jury shall appoint a Treasurer of the DeSoto Parish 

Police Jury who shall serve at the pleasure of the DeSoto Parish Police Jury in 

accordance with the provisions of La. R.S. 33:1651, et seq. The Treasurer shall 

receive the money of the parish, disburse parish funds pursuant to state and 

federal law, take receipts, keep regular accounts of all receipts, expenditures and 

debts due to or from the parish, and direct prosecutions ordered by the Police Jury 

for all debts due the parish. 

Page 62



 
 

RULE 9 At the first regular meeting of a newly elected DeSoto Parish Police Jury and 

annually thereafter, a President and Vice President shall be elected by the DeSoto 

Parish Police Jury from among its members. The President shall preside at 

meetings of the DeSoto Parish Police Jury, and in the absence or disqualification 

of the President, the Vice President shall preside. In the absence or 

disqualification of both the President and the Vice President, the DeSoto Parish 

Police Jury shall designate one of its other members as its temporary presiding 

officer. 

 
The President, Vice President, and temporary presiding officer shall be voting 

members of the DeSoto Parish Police Jury. 

 
RULE 10:  The. DeSoto Parish Police Jury shall be predominantly guided in parliamentary 

matters by these Rules and secondarily by Robert's Rule of Order. In case of 

conflict, these rules shall take precedence over Robert’s Rules of Order. 

 
ARTICLE VI 

 
Ordinances and Resolutions 

 

RULE 1:   All ordinances and resolutions shall be introduced in writing and in the form 
required for adoption and, except for codifications, the annual budget shall be 
confined to one subject, expressed clearly in the title. 

 
RULE 2:    All proposed ordinances and resolutions shall be read by title when introduced 

and considered for adoption at the meeting in which they are introduced, unless 

otherwise provided under the applicable provisions of Louisiana law. 

 
RULE 3:   With the final approval of ordinances and resolutions by the DeSoto Parish 

Police Jury, such enacted ordinances and resolutions shall be published in full in 

the official journal by the Secretary of the DeSoto Parish Police Jury within five 

(5) days thereafter, provided, however, that ordinances and resolutions adopting 

or amending the annual budget shall be published in accordance with the 

applicable provisions of Louisiana law. 

 
Except as otherwise provided under Louisiana law, every enacted ordinance, 

unless it shall specify another date, shall become effective immediately upon 

publication by the DeSoto Parish Police Jury, and a proof of publication shall be 

required from the official journal; provided that no such ordinance may be used to 

levy taxes or special assessments; grant or extend a franchise; incur debt, adopt 

or amend an official map, platting or subdivision controls or zoning regulations; or 

propose amendments to these Rules 

Page 63



 

RULE 4:   The President of the DeSoto Parish Police Jury is hereby vested with 

the authority to declare a local disaster or emergency. In addition, the 

President of the DeSoto Parish Police Jury shall possess such other 

powers conferred by the Louisiana Homeland Security and Emergency 

Assistance and Disaster Act, La. R.S.29:721, et seq. 

 
 

ARTICLE VII 

 
Motions and Their Precedence 

 

RULE 1:   Every motion, resolution and ordinance shall be read by title or definition by the 
President or the Secretary before debate or putting the motion or resolution to the 
question. 

 
RULE 2:    After a motion is stated by the President, the DeSoto Parish Police Jury may act 

upon it, but it may be withdrawn by the maker and the second at any time before 

it is amended or voted upon. 

 
RULE 3:    A motion to adjourn or to take a recess shall always be in order, except when 

the President is putting a question to the DeSoto Parish Police Jury, while a 

member has the floor, after the previous question has been ordered, or while the 

Secretary is calling the roll. 

 
RULE 4: An amended motion cannot be further amended. 

 
ARTICLE VIII 

 
The Previous Question 

 

RULE 1:    The "previous question" shall be as follows: "Shall the main question now be 
put", and until it is decided, it shall preclude all amendments or debate. When, on 
taking the previous question, the DeSoto Parish Police Jury shall decide that the 
main question shall not now be put, the main question shall be considered as still 
remaining under debate. The main question shall be on the passage of the 
ordinance, resolution or other matter under consideration, but when the 
amendments are pending, the question shall first be taken upon such 
amendments in their order. 

Page 64



 

ARTICLE IX 

 
General Provisions 

 

RULE 1:   The DeSoto Parish Police Jury shall meet on the first and third Monday of each 
month at 5:00 p.m. in the DeSoto Parish Police Jury Meeting Room at the Police 
Jury Building, 101 Franklin Street, Mansfield, Louisiana, unless a holiday, and 
then on the business day following, and on such other days as the DeSoto Parish 
Police Jury may determine. 

 
Special meetings may be called by the President or a majority of all members with 
twenty-four (24) hours previous notice, but not on weekends or holidays, except 
in extreme emergencies. 

 
RULE 2:   The DeSoto Parish Police Jury shall determine what communications, petitions, 

resolutions, or other matters incorporated into the official proceedings or minutes. 

 
RULE 3:   Any of these Rules may be changed by a two-thirds vote of a majority of all 

members, provided previous notice has been given at the prior regular meeting. 
 
RULE 4:   All previous acts, rules, resolutions, or parts thereof pertaining to by-laws 

inconsistent with these rules are hereby rescinded and repealed. 

 
RULE 5: These rules will become effective immediately upon adoption. 

 
ARTICLE X 

 
Committee Meetings 

 

RULE 1:   Committee Meetings will be held in the Police Jury Building, 101 Franklin 
Street, Mansfield, Louisiana, at 5:00 p.m. on the first Monday of each month, 
unless a holiday, and then on the business day following, or on such other day 
scheduled by the DeSoto Parish Police Jury. Committee Members of a Police Jury 
are required to request the Chairman of the Committee to place a particular item 
on the Committee Meeting Agenda. Upon approval of the Committee Meeting 
Agenda, the Chairman shall transmit the Agenda to the Secretary. In the event a 
member of Police Jury is unable to contact the Chairman of the Committee, he or 
she should contact the Secretary. 

Page 65



 
 

RULE 2:   Committee Meetings shall be chaired by the Chairman of the Committee. 

Proposals submitted to a Committee, may by a majority vote of those members 

present, be forwarded to the DeSoto Parish Police Jury Regular Meeting Agenda 

on the preceding Wednesday by recommendation for approval or, in instances 

where additional information or further deliberation is required, by a motion to 

delay such action. Actions approved or delayed by a Committee may specify 

referral to a future DeSoto Parish Police Jury Regular Meeting Agenda. Actions 

forwarded to a DeSoto Parish Police Jury Regular Meeting Agenda will be placed 

under the appropriate Agenda Heading, i.e., Unfinished Business, New Business, 

Ordinances, Resolutions and other matters. Administration responses to requests 

for additional information made during a Committee Meeting will be placed on the 

Regular Agenda of the DeSoto Parish Police Jury under the heading of 

Administrative Report. 

 
RULE 3:    The Secretary shall record the actions taken in Committee Meetings. In addition, 

the Secretary shall prepare the Committee Meeting Minutes and attach such 
Minutes in final form to the Regular Meeting Agenda. 

 
RULE 4:   Committee Meeting Agenda files will be established by the Secretary. Agenda 

items for each Committee Meeting should be developed from this file. It will also 

be the responsibility of the Secretary to insure that items referred from the DeSoto 

Parish Police Jury for Committee Meeting action are included on the subsequent 

agendas. Moreover, the Secretary will be responsible for inclusion of follow-up 

actions to be placed on subsequent agendas. 

 
RULE 5:    Any matter which has been disapproved by a vote of the Committee Members 

shall not be reconsidered by the Committee for a period of three (3) months, 

unless the entire membership of the Police Jury, by a two-thirds vote approves the 

reconsideration of the matter. 

Page 66



 

ARTICLE XI 

 
Order of Business (Committee Meetings) 

 

Except as otherwise authorized by a majority vote of the members of the 

Committee, the business of each DeSoto Parish Police Jury Regular Meeting is 

hereby established as follows: 

 
 

A. Call to Order 

B. Invocation 

C. Pledge of Allegiance 

D. Call for Additions and Deletions 

E. Guest and Public Comments 

F. Business Item(s) 

G. Adjourn 

 
ARTICLE XII 

 
Procedures Governing Speakers 

 

RULE 1:   At the beginning of each meeting, the President shall announce that 

individuals who desire to make a public comment concerning an agenda item are 

requested to complete a public comment card, to include the name, address and 

telephone number of the individual, the subject matter of the comment, and if the 

individual is speaking in support or against an agenda item. 

 
RULE 2:   The President shall group all requests to speak according to the subject matter. 

Prior to taking any action on an agenda item, the President will call upon the 

individual(s) who made a request to speak on a particular agenda item. 

 
RULE 3:    Discussion shall be limited to three (3) minutes per individual, or a total of fifteen 

(15) minutes for all the proponents, and fifteen (15) minutes for all the opponents 

of a particular agenda item, unless the Police Jury, by majority vote, extends the 

time period for an individual to speak. 

 
RULE 4:    The number of individuals speaking as proponents of a particular agenda item 

shall be limited to five (5), and the number of individuals speaking as opponents 

of a particular agenda item shall be limited to five (5), unless the Police Jury, by 

majority vote, elects to waive this requirement. 

Page 67



 
 

RULE 5:  Members of the Police Jury cannot ask any questions during public comments or 

public hearings until both sides, proponents and opponents, have completed their 

comments. 

 
RULE 6:   Subject to the provisions of Article IV, Rule (5) hereof, neither the Police Jury nor 

its staff shall be required to respond to questions posed by individual members of 

the general public during the public comment period or public hearings, unless the 

name of the individual member of the public has been placed on the agenda of a 

Committee Meeting or the Police Jury. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Police 

Jury, by majority vote, may elect to waive this requirement, in its sole discretion. 

 
Zoning Hearings: 

 

RULE 7: The procedures stipulated in Rules I-6 above shall also apply to Zoning 
Hearings. 

 
 

Special Presentations: 
 

RULE 8: The time limit for Special Presentations shall be at the discretion of the 
President. 

Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



COOPERATIVE ENDEAVOR AGREEMENT 
 

 
THIS COOPERATIVE ENDEAVOR AGREEMENT, is made and effective as of this __________ day 
of    , 2024, by and between: 

 
THE DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY, a political subdivision of the State of 
Louisiana, whose mailing address is 101 Franklin Street, Mansfield, LA 71052, 
represented herein by its president, Rodriguez Ross, (hereinafter referred to as "Police 
Jury), and 

 

TOWN OF LOGANSPORT, a political subdivision of the State of Louisiana, whose 
mailing address is P.O. Box 400, Logansport, Louisiana 71049, represented herein by 
its Mayor, Judge Cordray, (hereinafter referred to as the “Town”).  

 
WITNESSETH 

 
WHEREAS, the Town has requested assistance from the Police Jury for expenses related to 

the River City Festival; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Police Jury approved the request from the Town; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Police Jury and the Town desire to enter into a Cooperative Endeavor 

Agreement (the “Agreement”) for the purpose of facilitating the aforementioned project; and 
 
WHEREAS, the execution and delivery of this Agreement has been duly and validly 

authorized by the parties hereto; and 
 

WHEREAS, Article VII, Section 14(C) of the Louisiana Constitution of 1974 provides that the 
state and its political subdivisions or political corporations may engage in cooperative endeavors 
with each other, with the United States or its agencies, or with any public or private association, 
corporation, or individual. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Police Jury and the Town each agree to perform their respective 
obligations under this Agreement in accordance with the conditions, covenants and procedures set 
forth herein as follows: 
 

ARTICLE I 
REPRESENTATIONS OF THE POLICE JURY 

 
SECTION 1.01  Police Jury Authority.  The Police Jury has all requisite power pursuant to 
Article VII, Section 14(C) of the Louisiana Constitution of 1974 and La. R.S. 33:1236 et seq. to enter 
into this Agreement and perform its obligations hereunder, and there are no contracts or obligations 
in conflict therewith.  
 
SECTION 1.02  No Indebtedness.   The essence of the undertakings of the Police Jury 
hereunder are not intended to create any indebtedness on the part of the Police Jury, but only the 
cooperative use of its funds and resources to facilitate the River City Fest. 
 

Page 83



SECTION 1.03  Term and Effective Date.  The Term of this Agreement shall commence and 
become effective upon the execution hereof and terminate after the completion of the respective 
obligations of the parties. 
 

ARTICLE II 
COOPERATIVE ENDEAVOR OBLIGATIONS 

 
SECTION 2.01  Relating to Article VII, Section 14 of the Louisiana Constitution.   In entering 
into this Agreement, it is not the intent of the Police Jury and the Town to enter into a gratuitous 
transfer of public funds and/or resources because such parties expect the Police Jury and the Town 
to pay for expenses related to the River City Fest for the promotion of tourism in Logansport and 
DeSoto Parish. Accordingly, each party will receive something of value in return for the performance 
of their obligations hereunder, which is: 

 
(a) In the case of the Police Jury, the promotion of tourism and economic development 

activities in DeSoto Parish; and 
 
(b) In the case of the Town, the promotion of tourism and economic development activities in 

the Town of Logansport. 
 
Additionally, the Police Jury and the Town will have reciprocal obligations further described herein. 
 
The Police Jury and the Town further find and determine that (a) both the Police Jury and the Town 
have the legal authority to enter into this Agreement; (b) the promotion of tourism in Logansport and 
DeSoto Parish potentially results in increased tax revenues for the Police Jury and the Town 
constituting a public purpose; and (c) there is a reasonable expectation on the part of the Police Jury 
and the Town of receiving at least equivalent value in exchange for the expenditure of public funds 
and/or resources by the Police Jury. 
 

ARTICLE III 
POLICE JURY OBLIGATIONS 

 
SECTION 3.01  Police Jury Obligations. 
 
 

(a) The Police Jury shall appropriate and agrees to provide Five Thousand Dollars 
($5,000.00) to the Town to assist with expenses related to the River City Fest slated for 
May 9-11, 2024. 
 
 

ARTICLE IV 
TOWN OBLIGATIONS 

 
SECTION 4.01    Town Obligations. 
 

(a) The Town will pay invoices required to facilitate the River City Fest, including equipment, 
stage banners, advertisement fees, etc.   
 

(b) The Town will disburse the funds no later than December 31, 2024, or return unused funds 
to the Police Jury. 

 

Page 84



(c) The Town shall provide documentary evidence the funds received from the Police Jury 
have been expended in accordance with this Agreement. Documentary evidence includes 
contracts, invoices, cancelled checks, and other written documentation of expenditures. 

 
 

ARTICLE V 
MISCELLANEOUS 

 
 
SECTION 5.01  Liberal Construction. This Agreement shall be construed liberally to secure the 
beneficial intents and purposes hereof and shall be construed liberally as necessary to protect and 
further the interests of the parties hereto. 
 
SECTION 5.02  Notices.  All reports, statements or notices required or advisable to be given 
hereunder shall be deemed to be given if sent to the parties hereto at the following addresses: 
 
 
POLICE JURY 
 
Police Jury 
c/o Michael Norton 
Parish Administrator  
101 Franklin Street, 
Mansfield, Louisiana 71052 
 
TOWN OF LOGANSPORT 
 
Mayor Judge Cordray 
P.O. Box 400 
Logansport, Louisiana 71049 
 
Any notice required or permitted to be given under or in connection with this Agreement shall be 
made in writing and shall be delivered by United States Certified Mail Return Receipt requested, by 
private or commercial carrier, express mail, such as Federal Express, facsimile or electronic 
transmission confirmed by mailed written confirmation, or personally delivered to an officer of the 
receiving party.  
 
SECTION 5.03  Severability.  To the fullest extent possible, each provision of this Agreement 
shall be interpreted in such manner as to be effective and valid under applicable law, but if any 
provision of this Agreement shall be prohibited or invalid under said law, such provision shall be 
ineffective to the extent of such prohibition or invalidity without invalidating the remainder of such 
provision or the remaining provisions of this Agreement. 
 
SECTION 5.04  No Personal Liability. No covenant or agreement contained in this Agreement 
shall be deemed to be the covenant or agreement of any official, trustee, officer, agent or employee, 
in his or her individual capacity, and neither the officers thereof nor any official executing this 
Agreement shall be liable personally with respect hereto or be subject to any personal liability or 
accountability by reason of the execution and delivery of this Agreement. 
 
SECTION 5.05  Captions.   The captions or headings in this Agreement are for convenience 
only and in no way define, limit or describe the scope or extent of any provision in this Agreement. 

Page 85



 
SECTION 5.06  Counterparts.   This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each 
which shall be an original and all of which when taken together shall be deemed one and the same 
Agreement. 
 
SECTION 5.07  Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be constructed in accordance with and 
governed by the laws of the State of Louisiana.  
 
SECTION 5.08  Amendment and/or Modification.  Neither this Agreement nor any term, 
provision or exhibit hereof, may be changed, waived, discharged, amended or modified orally, or in 
any manner other than by an instrument in writing signed by the parties hereto. 
 
SECTION 5.09  Rescission or Amendment.   In no event shall any rescission or amendment to 
this Agreement be effective without the prior written consent of the affected parties hereto. 
 
SECTION 5.10  Third Party Beneficiary.   It is the explicit intention of the parties hereto that no 
person or entity other than the parties hereto, except governmental authorities to the extent required 
by law, is or shall be entitled to bring any action to enforce any provision of this Agreement against 
either parties hereto, and that the covenants, undertakings and agreements set forth in this 
Agreement shall be solely for the benefit of, and shall be enforceable only by, the parties hereto or 
their respective successors and assigns as permitted hereunder. 
 
SECTION 5.11  Successors and Assigns.  This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to 
the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective heirs, successors, representatives and permitted 
assigns. 
 
SECTION 15.12  Indemnification: Hold Harmless and Insurance.  The Contracting Party shall 
indemnify and save harmless the Police Jury against any and all claims, losses, liabilities, demands, 
suits, causes of action, damages, and judgments of sums of money to any party accruing against 
the Police Jury growing out of, resulting from, or by reason of any act or omission of the Contracting 
Party, its agents, servants, volunteers, independent contractors, or employees while engaged in, 
about, or in connection with the discharge or performance of the terms of this Agreement. Such 
indemnification shall include the Police Jury’s fees and costs of litigation, including, but not limited 
to, reasonable attorney’s fees. The Contracting Party shall provide and bear the expense of all 
personal and professional insurance related to its duties arising under this Agreement. 
 
 
SECTION 5.13 Reimbursement of Funds. Contracting Party agrees and acknowledges the 
funds appropriated by the Police Jury pursuant to Section 3.01 are public funds. As such, the 
appropriated funds shall be used exclusively for the programs and activities referenced in the 
Agreement. Contracting Party agrees to reimburse the Police Jury all or a portion of the appropriated 
funds, in the event the Police Jury determines, in its sole discretion, the appropriated funds were not 
expended for the purposes authorized hereunder. 
 
 
SECTION 5.14  Assignment.  The parties may not assign their rights, duties, or obligations 
under this Agreement to any other person or entity without the prior written consent of the other 
party. 
 
SECTION 5.15  Entire Agreement and Amendment.  This Agreement contains the entire 
agreement of the parties with respect to the matters contained herein and supersedes all previous 

Page 86



agreements or understandings regarding the same, whether written or oral. This Agreement may be 
modified, changed, or altered only by an Agreement in writing signed by both parties. 
 

 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have made and executed this Cooperative 
Endeavor Agreement as of the date and year first written above. 

 
 

WITNESSES:          DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY 
 
 
       BY:       
 
       Name:  Rodriguez Ross    
 
       Title:  President    
 
 
   
 
 
WITNESSES:                 TOWN OF LOGANSPORT   
      
 
 
       BY:       
 
       Name:  Judge Cordray   
      

      Title:  Mayor     
 
 

Page 87



COOPERATIVE ENDEAVOR AGREEMENT 
 
 

THIS COOPERATIVE ENDEAVOR AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and effective as of this         
day of ____               , 2024, by and between: 
 
 
THE DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY, a political subdivision of the State of 
Louisiana, whose mailing address is 101 Franklin Street, Mansfield, LA 71052, 
represented herein by its duly authorized president, Rodriguez Ross, (hereinafter referred 
to as "Police Jury"), and  
 

DESOTO DISTRICT NO. 1 FIREFIGHTER ASSOCIATION, (TIN: XX-XXX0667), a private, 
non-profit corporation organized in accordance with Louisiana Revised Statutes, its 
permanent mailing address being 300 Marshall Road, Logansport, LA 71049, represented 
herein by its duly authorized President, Teressa Stephens, (hereinafter referred to as 
"Contracting Party”). 

 
WITNESSETH 

 
 WHEREAS, the Police Jury has the authority to enter into this Agreement as evidenced by its 
governmental purpose under the provisions of La. R.S. 33:1236; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Contracting Party sponsors the fireworks display for the annual Ricky Warren 
Memorial Fireworks Show held at the Logansport River Park; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Police Jury desires to cooperate with the Contracting Party to sponsor events that 

promote tourism in Logansport and DeSoto Parish; and 
 

 WHEREAS, Article VII, Section 14(C) of the Louisiana Constitution of 1974 provides that the state 
and its political subdivisions or political corporations may engage in cooperative endeavors with each other, 
with the United States or its agencies, or with any public or private association, corporation, or individual; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, the transfer or expenditures of public funds or property is not a gratuitous donation;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual covenants herein contained, 
the parties hereto agree as follows: 
 

ARTICLE I 
REPRESENTATIONS OF THE POLICE JURY 

 
SECTION 1.01  Police Jury Authority.  The Police Jury has all requisite power pursuant to Article VII, 
Section 14(C) of the Louisiana Constitution of 1974 and La. R.S. 33:1236 et seq. to enter into this 
Agreement and perform its obligations hereunder, and there are no contracts or obligations in conflict 
therewith.  
 
SECTION 1.02  No Indebtedness.   The essence of the undertakings of the Police Jury described 
hereunder is for the Police Jury to work cooperatively with the Contracting Party in performing its 
obligations and to do so to the best of its ability but not to represent that is creating any indebtedness on 

Page 88



the part of the Police Jury, but rather only to cooperate in the use of its current resources and performance 
of its obligations toward the primary and any related activities described herein. 
 
SECTION 1.03  Term and Effective Date.  The Term of this Agreement shall commence and become 
effective upon the execution hereof and terminate after the completion of the respective obligations of the 
parties. 

 
ARTICLE II 

COOPERATIVE ENDEAVOR OBLIGATIONS 
 

SECTION 2.01 Article VII, Section 14 of the Louisiana Constitution of 1974. In entering into this Agreement, 
it is not the intent of the Police Jury and Contracting Party to enter into a gratuitous transfer of public funds 
because such parties expect the expenditure of funds by the Police Jury will support the Contracting Party 
within the meaning of La. R.S. 33:1236, et seq, and they will each receive something of value in return for 
the performance of their obligations hereunder, which is: 

 
(a) In the case of the Police Jury, to provide financial support to sponsor events that 

promote tourism in Logansport and DeSoto Parish. 
 

(b) In the case of the Contracting Party, providing a community event that attracts residents 
and visitors to Logansport and DeSoto Parish and promotes tourism. 

 
Additionally, the Police Jury and the Contracting Party will have reciprocal obligations further described 
herein. 
 
The Police Jury and the Contracting Party further find and determine that:  

 
a) both the Police Jury and the Contracting Party have the legal authority to enter into this 

Agreement;  
 

b) the project creates a public benefit; and 
 

c) there is a reasonable expectation on the part of the Police Jury and the Contracting 
Party of receiving at least equivalent value in exchange for the expenditure of public 
funds by the Police Jury. 

 
ARTICLE III 

POLICE JURY OBLIGATIONS 
 
SECTION 3.01   
  

a) The Police Jury shall provide funding in the amount of Two Thousand Five Hundred 
Dollars ($2,500.00) to the Contracting Party to pay costs associated with the 
sponsorship of the Ricky Warren Memorial Fireworks Show to promote tourism in 
Logansport and DeSoto Parish. 

 
ARTICLE IV 

DELIVERABLES 
 
SECTION 4.01  Contracting Party Obligations. 
  

Page 89



a) The Contracting Party will use funds provided by the Police Jury to pay costs associated 
with the sponsorship of the Ricky Warren Memorial Fireworks Show that promotes 
tourism for Logansport and DeSoto Parish. 
 

b) The Contracting Party shall provide the Police Jury with a written report, invoices and 
other written documentation requested by the Police Jury delineating the manner in 
which the appropriated funds were expended; and 
 

c) The Contracting Party shall be audited in accordance with R.S. 24:513 and provide a 
copy of the audit to the Police Jury.  

 
ARTICLE V 

MISCELLANEOUS 

 
SECTION 5.01  Liberal Construction. This Agreement shall be construed liberally to secure the 
beneficial intents and purposes hereof and in particular shall be construed liberally as necessary to protect 
and further the interests of the parties hereto. 
 
SECTION 5.02  Notices.  All reports, statements or notices required or advisable to be given 
hereunder shall be deemed to be given if sent to the parties hereto at the addresses as follows: 
 
POLICE JURY 
 
DeSoto Parish Police Jury 
c/o Michael Norton 
Parish Administrator 
101 Franklin Street, 
Mansfield, Louisiana 71052 
 
 
CONTRACTING PARTY 
 
DeSoto Fire District No. 1 Association 

Teressa Stephens, President 
300 Marshall Road 
Logansport, LA 71049 
 
Any notice required or permitted to be given under or in connection with this Agreement shall be in writing 
and shall be either hand-delivered; by United States Certified Mail, Return Receipt requested; by private 
or commercial carrier or express mail, such as Federal Express; by facsimile transmission confirmed by 
mailed written confirmation; or personally delivered to an officer of the receiving party. All such 
communications shall be mailed, sent or delivered to the address or number set forth above, or as to each 
party at such other addresses or numbers as shall be designated by such party in a written notice to the 
other party. 
 
SECTION 5.03  Severability.  To the fullest extent possible, each provision of this Agreement shall 
be interpreted in such manner as to be effective and valid under applicable law, but if any provision of this 
Agreement shall be prohibited or invalid under such law, such provision shall be ineffective to the extent 

Page 90



of such prohibition or invalidity without invalidating the remainder of such provision or the remaining 
provisions of this Agreement. 
 
SECTION 5.04  No Personal Liability.   No covenant or agreement contained in this Agreement shall 
be deemed to be the covenant or agreement of any official, trustee, officer, agent or employee of the Police 
Jury or Contracting Party, in his or her individual capacity, and neither the officers thereof nor any official 
executing this Agreement shall be liable personally with respect hereto or be subject to any personal liability 
or accountability by reason of the execution and delivery of this Agreement. 
 
SECTION 5.05  Captions.   The captions or headings in this Agreement are for convenience only 
and in no way define, limit or describe the scope or extent of any of the provisions of this Agreement. 
 
SECTION 5.06  Counterparts.   This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each 
which shall be an original and all of which when taken together shall be deemed one and the same 
Agreement. 
 
SECTION 5.07  Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be constructed in accordance with and 
governed by the laws of the State of Louisiana.  
 
SECTION 5.08  Amendment and/or Modification.  Neither this Agreement nor any term, provision or 
exhibit hereof may be changed, waived, discharged, amended, or modified orally, or in any manner other 
than by an instrument in writing signed by the parties hereto. 
 
SECTION 5.09  Rescission or Amendment.   In no event shall any rescission or amendment to this 
Agreement be effective without the prior written consent of the affected parties hereto. 
 
SECTION 5.10  Third Party Beneficiary.   It is the explicit intention of the parties hereto that no person 
or entity other than the parties hereto, except governmental authorities to the extent required by law, is or 
shall be entitled to bring any action to enforce any provision of this Agreement against either parties hereto, 
and that the covenants, undertakings and agreements set forth in this Agreement shall be solely for the 
benefit of, and shall be enforceable only, by the parties hereto or their respective successors and assigns 
as permitted hereunder. 
 
SECTION 5.11  Successors and Assigns.  This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the 
benefit of the parties hereto and their respective heirs, successors, representatives, and permitted assigns. 
 

SECTION 15.12  Indemnification: Hold Harmless and Insurance.  The Contracting Party shall 
indemnify and save harmless the Police Jury against any and all claims, losses, liabilities, demands, 
suits, causes of action, damages, and judgments of sums of money to any party accruing against the 
Police Jury growing out of, resulting from, or by reason of any act or omission of the Contracting Party, 
its agents, servants, volunteers, independent contractors, or employees while engaged in, about, or 
in connection with the discharge or performance of the terms of this Agreement. Such indemnification 
shall include the Police Jury’s fees and costs of litigation, including, but not limited to, reasonable 
attorney’s fees. The Contracting Party shall provide and bear the expense of all personal and 
professional insurance related to its duties arising under this Agreement. 
 
SECTION 5.13  Reimbursement of Funds. Contracting Party agrees and acknowledges the 
funds appropriated by the Police Jury pursuant to Section 3.01 are public funds. As such, the appropriated 
funds shall be used exclusively for the programs and activities referenced in the Agreement. Contracting 
Party agrees to reimburse the Police Jury all or a portion of the appropriated funds, in the event the Police 

Page 91



Jury determines, in its sole discretion, the appropriated funds were not expended for the purposes 
authorized hereunder. 
 
SECTION 5.14  Assignment.  The parties may not assign their rights, duties, or obligations under 
this Agreement to any other person or entity without the prior written consent of the other party. 
 
SECTION 5.15  Entire Agreement and Amendment.  This Agreement contains the entire agreement 
of the parties with respect to the matters contained herein and supersedes all previous agreements or 
understandings regarding the same, whether written or oral. This Agreement may be modified, changed, 
or altered only by an Agreement in writing signed by both parties. 

 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have made and executed this Cooperative Endeavor 
Agreement as of the date and year first written above. 

 
 

WITNESSES:                 DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY 
 
 
       BY:       
 
       Name:  Rodriguez Ross   
 
       Title:  President    
 
 
   
 
 
WITNESSES:                 DESOTO FIRE DISTRICT NO. 1 ASSOCIATION   
      
 
 
       BY:       
 
       Name:  Teressa Stephens   
      

      Title:  President                    

Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



 

 

      
 
 
 
 
 
 

Scope: DeSoto Parish Police Jury  Job Title: Engineering Technician (Construction Supervisor) 
 
Category: Engineering Department   Salary: $70,125 - $105,427 
 
Description: 
This position is in the Engineering Department and reports directly to the Parish Engineer.  The incumbent will serve 
as the Lead Engineering Technician for projects assigned.   The Incumbent shall be self-motivated and able to perform 
duties with or without direct supervision.  The incumbent is responsible for the execution of quality assurance and 
design on multiple construction projects which includes resolving highly complex construction problems in various 
areas, i.e. (asphaltic concrete, Portland cement concrete pavements and bridges, soil mechanics and earthwork 
construction, traffic control and utility relocation).   
 
Duties and Responsibilities: 

 Serve as the Parish Engineer’s Representation on construction project assigned.  

 Will be required to supervise and train subordinate technicians and will be responsible for verifying the 

accuracy of their work product. 

 Will be required to interact with a variety of stake holders and must project the best image possible for the 

department.  

 Shall be knowledgeable enough to interpret and report unforeseen conditions as they may arise. 

 Monitor construction signage for compliance with the MUTCD. 

 Inspect contractor construction procedures to ensure compliance with the project specifications and quality 

assurance requirements. 

 Collect required samples and test materials that are to be included in the project.  Performs soil density test, or 

directs contracted testing labs to perform such test 

 Takes all pertinent measurements including, but not limited to, length, width and depth verification.  Calculate 

and enter quantities for project records. 

 Compiles and summarizes monthly contractor payment for review. 

 Gathers field information for alterations or changes to the project. 

 Prepares or reviews daily work reports and associated pay items 

 Obtain additional training as needed or required. 

 Assist in design processes and surveying projects. 

 Coordinates with other departmental sections. 

 Perform such duties as are required for the efficient operation of the Parish. 

Qualifications: 

 Required to have at least two full certifications as issued By LADOTD for Embankment, Concrete pavement, 

Structures, Asphaltic pavement, Asphalt Plant. 

 Bachelor’s degree in Construction, Engineering or related field and five years’ work experience or equivalent 

combination of training, supervision and work experience required. 

 High level of computer proficiency including email, internet, Excel, and database applications.   

 Strong interpersonal, and both written and verbal communication skills. 

 

 Physical Demands: 

 Must be able to perform the essential functions of the project as defined in the duties and responsibilities. 

Page 102



 

 

 While performing the duties of this job, the employee will work in inclement weather, be required to stand, 

reach, stoop and kneel and to lift and or move up to 50 pounds. 

Page 103



Engineering Technician (Construction Supervisor)

Payroll Expense Per Year: 70,125                                105,427                               

Payroll Taxes:

Social Security and Medicare Taxes 5,365                                  8,065                                   

Worker's Compensation 91                                       137                                      

Parochial Retirement Match 5,259                                  7,907                                   

Legend Match (voluntary) 3,506                                  5,271                                   

Payroll  & Payroll Taxes 84,346                                126,808                               

Payroll, Payroll Taxes & Insurance:

Employee Only 94,842                                137,304                               

Employee & Dependent 103,576                              146,038                               

Employee & Spouse 106,024                              148,486                               

Family 113,380                              155,842                               

Page 104



!(

!(

!(

FLORIDA PVT DR	

COWBOY LN

337
 

271
 

265
 

Page 105



!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

CHIASSON PVT DR

DEPOT RD

HWY 5

213
 

119
 

209
 

152
 

148
 

9834
 

Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



Page 114



Page 115



Page 116



Page 117



Page 118



Page 119


	Top
	1.	Vyneeth Iyengar
	2.	Administrator's Report
	3.	Chance's Report
	DPPJ Report - March 2024

	4.	Financials
	February 2024-1

	5.	Minutes
	2-20-24 Regular Meeting Minutes Document
	3-4-24 Administrative Committee Meeting Minutes Document
	3-4-24 Budget and Finance Committee Meeting Minutes Document
	3-4-24 Solid Waste Committee Minutes Document
	3-4-24 Personnel Committee Meeting Minutes Document
	3-4-24 Road Committee Meeting Minutes Document

	6.	Insurance
	7.	Surplus
	2024 Surplus List

	8.	Waterworks District 1
	PJ Apprvl Resolution - to adopt 3.18.24-1

	9.	120 Sprocket
	10.	Rules By Laws
	RULES AND BYLAWS revised

	11.	Planning Commission
	Subdivision Regulations
	Letter from PC

	12.	Planning Commission
	13.	Planning Commission
	14.	River City Fest
	River City Fest
	2024 CEA-Town of Logansport - River City Fest

	15.	Fire Works
	2024 DFD No. 1 Association Fireworks Show 2.26.24

	16.	Surplus
	Bid for Vehicle

	17.	Engineering Technician
	Engineering Technician-Construction
	Engineering Technician

	18.	Chaisson and Florida Pvt Drive
	FLORIDA PVT DR - PROPOSED-1
	CHIASSON PVT DR - PROPOSED-1

	19.	Scrap Metal
	SKM_C55824022616020

	20.	Roll off Trucks
	Roll Off Truck Bid

	Bottom

